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[START RECORDING] 1 

MS. LAURIE PRICE:  Good evening.  My name is 2 

Laurie Price and tonight I'm going to be acting 3 

as the facilitator for this joint public 4 

hearing.  Tonight we are here for a joint public 5 

hearing, the Department of Education, the 6 

Community Education Council, CEC17 and the 7 

school leadership team to discuss the following 8 

proposal: the proposed co-location of Excellence 9 

Girls Charters School, 84K712, with existing 10 

school PS 1919, Paul Robeson, 17K191 in building 11 

K191 beginning in 2013.  Tonight's proceedings 12 

are being recorded and transcribed.  Although 13 

this proposal has not yet been approved for the 14 

Panel for Educational Policy, SUNY, which is the 15 

State University of New York Charter Schools 16 

Institute is required to hold a facilities 17 

hearing to receive feedback on the proposed co-18 

location.  As such, this joint public hearing 19 

will serve as the facilities hearing as well as 20 

the co-location hearing.  There is a 21 

representative from SUNY in attendance.  If you 22 

have questions or comments on the charter 23 

Maureen Murphy of SUNY will now tell you how to 24 

submit these questions and comments.   25 
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MS. MAUREEN MURPHY:  Good evening.  My name 1 

is Maureen Murphy and I'm the director of 2 

charter accountability at the SUNY Charter 3 

Schools Institute.  I'm the director of charter 4 

accountability at the SUNY Charter Schools 5 

Institute.  I'm here tonight to hold a public 6 

hearing on behalf of the Board of Trustees of 7 

the State University of New York or SUNY.  8 

SUNY's the authorizer of the charter school we 9 

are discussing today.  That means that the SUNY 10 

trustees approved the application to create this 11 

school.  My organization, the SUNY Charter 12 

Schools Institute, will visit the school and 13 

report on its progress to parents.  As the 14 

school gets older we will also make 15 

recommendations to the SUNY trustees about 16 

whether or not the school has earned the right 17 

to stay open.  Today our focus is on where the 18 

school will be located.  Education law requires 19 

SUNY to hold a public hearing anytime one of our 20 

schools might be open in an existing public 21 

school building.  I am here tonight to listen to 22 

your comments about the proposal to locate 23 

grades 5 through 8 of Excellence Girls Charter 24 

School in part of building K191 beginning in the 25 
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fall of 2013.  SUNY's holding it's hearing now 1 

at the same time as the DOE so that we don't 2 

have to ask parents and community members to 3 

attend two different hearings on the same 4 

subject.  We want to be sure we have the 5 

opportunity to hear from as many parents, 6 

teachers, school leaders and members of the 7 

community as we can.  I do want to note that 8 

SUNY has to make its own determination regarding 9 

the school using the proposed space.  I will be 10 

taking notes on all comments made tonight.  In 11 

addition, you may give me any written comments 12 

you may have with you.  You can email the 13 

comments to charters@suny.edu .  You can mail 14 

comments to 41 State Street, Suite 700, Albany, 15 

New York or fax them to (518) 427-6510.  I have 16 

extra copies of our notices that will include 17 

all of that contact information.  We will accept 18 

comments through December 28 th , 2012.  We set 19 

this deadline five days after the meeting of the 20 

PEP where this co-location will be discussed.  21 

That way if there's any information you get part 22 

of the conversation at the PEP meeting that you 23 

might want to share with us you have time to do 24 

so.  SUNY will make a decision on this co-25 
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location after the close of the comment period.  1 

In advance, I want to thank you for your 2 

comments tonight.  We appreciate your taking the 3 

time to be here.   4 

MS. PRICE:  Thank you and I'm going to ask 5 

you can you please repeat one more time the 6 

email, the address and the fax number? 7 

MS. MURPHY:  I have - - sheets.   8 

MS. PRICE:  Okay.  If folks didn't hear that 9 

she has pieces of information with that 10 

information to give to you if you'd like to take 11 

it with you.  Before the proposal is described I 12 

want to make sure that you're all aware of the 13 

opportunity to provide your input.  We ask that 14 

anyone who wishes to speak during the public 15 

comment portion evening sign up at the table in 16 

the back.  Sign up will end in 10 minutes.  Only 17 

people who have signed up to speak will be able 18 

to participate in the public comment.  All panel 19 

participants were asked to be no later than 5:30 20 

and now that we've started if a panel 21 

participant arrives late he or she will be given 22 

the time to speak at the first opportune moment.  23 

We want to be respectful of everybody's time 24 

tonight.  There may also be elected officials 25 
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who arrive at different times during the 1 

evening and the same for them.  If they wish to 2 

speak we'll do our best to accommodate them at 3 

the very first opportune moment.  Those who are 4 

here at the start of public comment will be 5 

asked to speak first.  Tonight's format will 6 

include a presentation of the proposal and 7 

presentation by hearing participants followed by 8 

public comment.  Speakers should have already 9 

signed up at the table in the back.  And if you 10 

haven't signed up, there are 9 minutes left.  11 

Public comments can be no longer than 2 minutes 12 

each.  The time will be strictly followed and 13 

speakers will be informed when their designated 14 

time has ended.  All comments will be mentioned 15 

in the analysis of public comment to be 16 

published and provided to the panel for 17 

education policy the evening before the panel 18 

votes.  That vote is scheduled for Thursday, 19 

December 20 th .  In addition, we welcome any 20 

comment and feedback you may have at any time 21 

before the panel votes on the proposal.  The 22 

email address and phone number where comments 23 

may be made are d17proposals@schools.nyc.gov .  24 

And the number you can call to make comment is 25 
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(212) 374-0208.  There will be a timekeeper 1 

tonight who will let the speaker know when there 2 

are 30 seconds remaining and when the time is up 3 

after 2 minutes.  I would now like to introduce 4 

the panel which has been assembled for this 5 

evening's joint public hearing.  Okay.  So, we 6 

are going to start here. This is Superintendent 7 

Buffie Simmons.   8 

MS. BUFFIE SIMMONS:  - - okay.  Thank you.  9 

Buffie Simmons, superintendent, district 17.   10 

MS. CLAUDETTE AGARD:  Claudette Agard, 11 

present of CEC17. 12 

MS. ELSI CAPOLONGO:  Elsi Capalongo, 13 

principal, PS 191.   14 

MS. HADAR GHAFI:  Hadar Ghafi, assistant 15 

principal public school 191.  16 

MR. MARVIN WHEELER:  Marvin Wheeler, CEC 17 

member, district 17.  Also parent and school 18 

leader - - thank you.  19 

MR. JESSE BUTLER:  Jesse Butler, president 20 

of the PAC, also parent of kids in school.   21 

MS. PRICE:  Thank you.  I'm now going to 22 

turn the program over to our chancellor's 23 

designee Buffie Simmons who will present the 24 

proposal.   25 



 8

MS. SIMMONS:  Good evening community.  The 1 

proposal summary is as the New York City 2 

Department of Education is proposing to co-3 

locate the 5 th  through 8 th  grades of Excellence 4 

Girls Charter School, 84K712 in building K191.  5 

Excellence Girls is existing public charter 6 

school serving students in kindergarten through 7 

4 th  grade in building K309 at 794 Monroe Street, 8 

Brooklyn, New York 11221 in community school 9 

district 16.  Under this proposal Excellence 10 

Girls 5 th  through 8 th  grades will be co-located 11 

with PS 191, Paul Robeson School in building 12 

K191 located at 1600 Park Place, Brooklyn, New 13 

York 11233 in community school district 17.  PS 14 

191 is existing DOE school that currently serves 15 

zone students in kindergarten through 5 th  grades 16 

and offers a full day pre-K program.  PS 191 is 17 

the only existing school in K191.  In summer 18 

2008, Excellence Girls Charter was authorized by 19 

the State University of New York Charter Schools 20 

Institute to serve students in kindergarten 21 

through 5 th  grades.  Excellence Girls is managed 22 

by Uncommon Schools, a charter management 23 

organization.  Excellence Girls have informed 24 

the DOE that it intends to apply to SUNY CSI to 25 
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expand it's grade span to serve students in 1 

kindergarten through 8 th  grade reaching full 2 

scale capacity in 2016 to 2017.  Only SUNY CSI 3 

has the authority to approve or deny that 4 

request.  This proposal to co-locate Excellence 5 

Girls in K191 is contingent upon Excellence 6 

Girls application for expansion of its charter 7 

authorization and SUNY approval of any such 8 

application.  Should SUNY deny any such request 9 

by Excellence Girls to expand this EIS and the 10 

accompany building utilization plan will be 11 

revised as necessary.  For the purposes of this 12 

proposal it is assumed that Uncommon will apply 13 

to SUNY to expand its grade span and that SUNY 14 

will approve Uncommon's application.  Under this 15 

proposal Excellent Girls will begin enrolling 5 th  16 

grade students in K191 for the 2013-2014 school 17 

year continuing to add 1 grade each year until 18 

it serves students in 5 th  through 8 th  grades in 19 

2016 and 2017.  And will increase enrollment for 20 

one year after that until it reaches a total 21 

enrollment of 252 to 321 students in 2017 to 22 

2018.  At that point, it will serve its 23 

elementary school grades K through 4 in building 24 

K309 and it's middle school grades 5 to 8 in 25 
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building K191.  Excellence Girls elementary 1 

school students will be automatically eligible 2 

to articulate in Excellence Girls middle school 3 

grades.  Any remaining available seats will be 4 

filled through the charter lottery process.  5 

K191 has been identified as under utilized 6 

building.  According to the 2011-2012 enrollment 7 

capacity utilization report, the blue book, K191 8 

has a capacity to serve 661 students.  In 2012 9 

to 2013 PS191 is projected to serve 223 students 10 

in kindergarten through 5 th  grades and 18 11 

students in pre-K for a total of 241 students.  12 

This yields a building utilization rate of 13 

approximately 36%.  This means that this 14 

building is under utilized and has space to 15 

accommodate additional students.  Under this 16 

proposal, when Excellence Girls is at full scale 17 

in 2017-2018 it is projected to serve 252 to 321 18 

students.  PS 191 is projected to serve 248 to 19 

300 students, 308 students that year for a total 20 

of 500 to 629 students amongst both schools 21 

yielding a projected utilization rate of 76% to 22 

95%.  Thus K191 has sufficient space to 23 

accommodate the proposed co-location.  The 24 

Department of Education does not anticipate that 25 
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the proposed co-location will affect the pre-K 1 

program at PS191.  As such, the DOE supports 2 

Excellence Girls expansion and placement in 3 

order to continue providing excellent education 4 

opportunities for students.   5 

MS. PRICE:  There is 1 minute left to sign 6 

up for public comment if anyone, any folks would 7 

like to do that before the time is up.  The next 8 

presenter will be Ms. Claudette Agard, CEC 17 9 

president.  Okay.  Deferred, okay.  Mr. Wheeler?   10 

MR. WHEELER:  Testing.  Good evening 11 

everyone.   12 

(Crosstalk) 13 

MR. WHEELER:  My name is Marvin Wheeler.  I 14 

sit on the Community Education Council but 15 

before I thought about sitting on the council as 16 

a member I'm a parent in PS191, a school of 17 

excellence.  My concern is that if you have a 18 

notice we haven't asked for a 5 th  grade to 8 th  19 

grade school at district 17.  Is the reason we 20 

didn't need one.  Okay.  And when you look at 21 

the what's about to happen is that you know 22 

this, you're going to cut off all the heads of 23 

all the schools in district 17 and we are not 24 

having it.  Because you got to understand where 25 
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we come from.  I like to know how you got the 1 

children's names and addresses to even put on 2 

your roster in the first place.  You got to 3 

understand those potentials because I have a 4 

problem with that.  How ya'll were able to 5 

obtain information that parents did not even 6 

give you in the first place.  But the Board of 7 

Ed gave it to you.  I'm concerned that you're 8 

looking at all the district that you be in, 9 

what's the matter, they don't want you to have 10 

another school in all the other districts that 11 

you've been in already?  What happened?  One 12 

school is enough?  I'm thinking the five 13 

districts that you already been in they should 14 

be able to accommodate you if you're doing so 15 

well.  I'm concerned about that.  If you're 16 

doing so well why haven't the other districts 17 

allowed you to come there and build inside a 18 

district that you already been in?  You're not 19 

doing that.  It's very simple.  I have no 20 

problem with education for children, but like I 21 

said, or any of the parents former district 17 22 

parents, I don't think so.  I don't think so.  23 

And that's a reason for that.  Because we don't 24 

need you in district 17.  The parents here, the 25 
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staff here are committed.  And it's very 1 

simple.  Whatever five districts that you are 2 

already in go back and build it inside those 3 

districts.  191 do not need you.  The parents 4 

here have not asked for you because I've been 5 

here 16 years and we never asked for a K to 8 6 

school.  We never asked for an all girls school 7 

and I don’t think any of ya'll been here 16 8 

years and know that.  None of ya'll been here 16 9 

years.  So, I know we haven't asked for it.  So, 10 

now you want to impose yourself inside this 11 

school and then what happened?  Now, we got to 12 

share all the things that we come to value in 13 

this school because now we got to share 14 

everything.  I don't see anything that ya'll 15 

bringing to us.  But you're going to enjoy this 16 

auditorium which we got built prior to your 17 

knowledge.  We got a dance studio that was built 18 

prior to your knowledge and since you got all 19 

girls I know you want to have some of that, too.  20 

I know you want to be a part of the dance studio 21 

that we have here.  So, let's make, let's keep 22 

it real, you're not bringing anything for us, 23 

but you want to take from us.  Very simple.  And 24 

I don’t appreciate that.  The parents don't 25 
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appreciate that and this community don't 1 

appreciate that.  Because since you ain't 2 

bringing us nothing, you ain't bringing us 3 

nothing, any parent here wanted a all girls 4 

school they would have went to one of your 5 

districts to join.  And guess what?  Ain't 6 

nobody left district 17 to go enroll in one of 7 

your schools over there where you already have 8 

schools located at.  That's real talk.  You can 9 

show me one.  I'm looking.  Ain't none of ya'll 10 

from district 17.  So, you don’t know the 11 

environment, you don't know the history.  You 12 

don't know the connection that the parents and 13 

the community have right here.  And ya'll, like 14 

I said, ya'll would be enemies because ya'll cut 15 

of heads of every single school who go to K to 16 

5.  And that's what you got to think about.  You 17 

ain't doing no service in district 17.  I advise 18 

you go back to all of the five districts where 19 

ya'll already been fine at.  See if they can 20 

accommodate you.  I don't understand why they 21 

can't accommodate you.  But you ain't bringing 22 

nothing to the table for 191.  I'm going to say 23 

I understand education, I understand finance, 24 

but if you're not bringing nothing here, only 25 
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thing ya'll going to do is take.  Board of 1 

Education has already took from us because they 2 

gave up valued information in the first place.  3 

They let ya'll come here to have a conversation.  4 

Until you come to the table when you want to 5 

bring something then maybe we can have a 6 

conversation with you later on in life.  Right 7 

about now, 191 doesn’t need you, district 17 8 

doesn’t need you.  Thank you. 9 

MS. PRICE:  Thank you, Mr. Wheeler.  The 10 

next presenter will be Mr. Butler of the Parent 11 

Advisory Council.   12 

MR. JESSE BUTLER:  Hello everybody, I'm 13 

Jesse Butler, I'm present of the PAC, but I'm 14 

speaking as a parent.  I have a pre-K in here 15 

and I have a 3 rd  grader and kids from 5 th  to 8 th  16 

grade they're going to interrupt what's going on 17 

with these kids.  My kids are young, they could 18 

be influenced by older kids, girls, boys, 19 

whether it's all girls, all boys, older kids 20 

tend to be bullies and I'm not going to lie on 21 

my kids to get bullied by older kids that's not 22 

here.  They're going to be new, they're going to 23 

do what they want to do.  They're not going to 24 

want to follow any rules.  They're not going to 25 
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feel that they got to listen to the teachers 1 

that's already here.  They only have to pay 2 

attention to what's going on in their school.  3 

They don't know what's going on here.  These 4 

kids are doing well.  Their academics went up in 5 

this school.  Everything is okay.  If it’s not 6 

broke why fix it?  It's nothing broken in 7 

school.  It look big from the outside, but when 8 

you come in the school it's not big.  I'm not 9 

just speaking as a parent, I also attended this 10 

school as a kid.  This school is not that big.  11 

It's nothing, in these hallways is what, 241 12 

kids in here?  When you come here and you 13 

observe what's going on it's already kind of 14 

crowded.  You don’t need 300 more students here.  15 

That's not going to make any sense.  It's okay 16 

that these kids want to learn, they need a place 17 

to learn, but it's 1,000 other schools you can 18 

go to.  It's other schools that's doing bad that 19 

might need more teachers that might teach you a 20 

little more, that can pay a little more 21 

attention to you, it's kids it's schools that's 22 

not on the level they supposed to be on.  This 23 

school is on track.  If you add more kids it's 24 

just going to decrease from what's going on in 25 
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here.  We don't need that.  I'm opposed to 1 

what's going on in there.  My kids, I'm not 2 

going to sit here, these older kids wind up 3 

doing something or don't want to listen or just 4 

want to take over what's going on.  The 5 

principal, the assistant principal they went 6 

through a lot to achieve a lot of things in this 7 

school, this auditorium, the gym, the dance 8 

studio, pianos, computer labs, two of them.  9 

Now, you're taking away from the kids that's 10 

actually learning, that's actually getting an 11 

education.  Now, the have to share all of that.  12 

They can't go, ya'll going to want to take days 13 

and go to the gym, computer labs, now the days 14 

that they had there is cut short.  So, ya'll 15 

cutting the education short.  Ya'll not just 16 

taking their space, ya'll cutting their 17 

education short.  And it's not fair for them.  18 

It's a bunch of other schools ya'll can go to 19 

and try to see if ya'll can get in.  It's a 20 

bunch of other schools that's not doing good.  21 

Kid are not up at standard.  They standards is 22 

not where they're supposed to be.  Ya'll can 23 

probably help them out.  But they not doing bad 24 

here, so leave it where it's at.  Thank you.   25 
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MS. PRICE:  Thank you.  Ms. Agard?  No?  1 

No.   2 

MS. AGARD:  Good evening.  On behalf of the 3 

Community Education Council.  My comments will 4 

be very brief.  We will be formulating a more 5 

detailed response which we will be submitting as 6 

part of our formal comments.  But just to 7 

briefly state that our challenge with the co-8 

location of all girls' school, Excellence All 9 

Girls Charter School is the process.  In your 10 

charter application you specifically indicated 11 

district 16 as your district of preference.  So, 12 

we're really concerned as to why you want to 13 

come into district 17 when in our districts need 14 

assessment, there is no indication that that is 15 

a population that needs to be serviced.  So, 16 

unlike maybe my colleague, I'm not challenging 17 

Excellence Girls Charter School, I would think 18 

that you are doing very well and you're looking 19 

to expand.  That was what your plan was in the 20 

first place.  My challenge is that it was never 21 

including district 17 and on an informal 22 

discussion with the DOE they have not given us 23 

enough evidence that you have enough of our 24 

students in district 17 in your schools to 25 
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warrant that you should get space in this 1 

school.  So, we have some other things that we 2 

will be addressing.  Some other points that we 3 

want to address in terms of the co-location and 4 

we just don't think it's a right fit.  That's 5 

basically what it comes down to.  We're not 6 

disputing, at least I'm not disputing the space 7 

right now.  This school and the SLT and the 8 

staff will be able to get more into the data 9 

with that.  But what we are seeing is that you 10 

don't really have enough of your population that 11 

warrant that the need is here in district 17.  12 

And so, 16 was what your application stated and 13 

so we're curious as to why you will not to 14 

expand in 16.  And we have specific populations 15 

and needs that we need to be serviced and 16 

addressed in this district and so that is what 17 

we are looking to address.  And an all girls 18 

school is not the population actually that is 19 

very fragile and vulnerable in our district.  20 

So, we're not saying that all girls' school is 21 

not a good thing, but not for this district and 22 

what we have identified as a district leadership 23 

team and in looking at our district.  It is just 24 

not the right fit for this district at this 25 
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time.  So, that's just a brief summary of some 1 

of the concerns and so as I said, we'll be 2 

meeting as a council to formulate a more 3 

detailed response with some of the others that 4 

we've identified and we will submit it at that 5 

point.  Thank you.   6 

MS. PRICE:  Thank you.  Principal Capalongo, 7 

would you like to speak?  8 

MS. CAPOLONGO:  - - speak.  9 

MS. PRICE:  No.  Okay.  Okay.  We have now 10 

concluded the formal presentations and are going 11 

to move on to public comment as per the list of 12 

folks who have signed up.  I ask that the 13 

following people line up for public comment.  14 

Actually, hang on one second, you're reminded 15 

that public comment is limited to 2 minutes.  16 

Time will be kept and we will signal when you 17 

have 30 seconds remaining and when your time is 18 

up.  And just to give folks a sense we have 19 

about 30 people signed up.  So, we give the 2 20 

minutes to respect everybody's time.  If 21 

everybody on the list speaks for 2 minutes we'll 22 

be here for about an hour.  If folks start to go 23 

over to 3 and 4 minutes that will easily turn 24 

into 2 hours, so we want to be respectful of 25 
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everybody's time and folks who may have 1 

children at home and have other things that they 2 

need to get home to.  So, in advance thank you 3 

everybody for being respectful of everybody's 4 

time.  I'm going to call the first five people 5 

and if you'd like to come and stand.  Number 6 

one, Paulette Johnson, number two, Mary Gibbs, 7 

number three, Diane Brewster, number four, 8 

Benisha Saint, I'm sorry, Saint Bishop and 9 

number five, Gwenita Crew.  And you're actually 10 

going to join her.  Thank you so much.   11 

MS. PAULETTE JOHNSON:  Good evening.  I'm 12 

the parent of a 4 th  grader and a kindergartner 13 

who attends Excellence Girls Charter School 14 

which shares its school space in partnership 15 

with PS309.  I’m here tonight in support of the 16 

co-location of Excellence Girls Middle Academy 17 

here at building K191.  The middle academy for 18 

excellence girls aims to provide another great 19 

option here in district 17 and work in 20 

partnership with the community to ensure that 21 

every student learning in this building receives 22 

the best educational opportunities possible.  As 23 

parents we have high academic hopes for our 24 

children.  We dream of seeing our children an 25 
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acceptance letter from a great college or 1 

university and then graduate ready to take on 2 

anything.  The reality is that it takes 3 

preparation with intention to make this 4 

possible.  Excellence Girls is a college 5 

preparatory option that provides the academic 6 

fundamentals and rigor to steer students toward 7 

high academic achievement.  Seven out of ten 8 

Uncommon High School students graduate from a 9 

four year college or university.  Excellence 10 

Girls Middle Academy is eager to continue in 11 

that vein of academic excellence and prepare 12 

students here in district 16 for higher learning 13 

opportunities too.  Excellence Girls Middle 14 

Academy is truly thankful for the opportunity to 15 

serve as another great school and I am confident 16 

that Excellence Girls will continue their track 17 

record of being a good neighbor here in building 18 

K191.  Thank you.  19 

MS. PRICE:  Ms. Gibbs.  20 

MS. MARY GIBBS:  Good evening everyone.  I'm 21 

here tonight in support of Excellence Girls as a 22 

parent.  My daughter's in the second grade at 23 

Excellence Girls.  It has been my experience 24 

that Excellence students and their families are 25 
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great partners in a shared space.  The staff 1 

ensures that respect and concern about the 2 

education of all kids in the building are given.  3 

My daughter has always been excited about 4 

school.  But there is a special excitement that 5 

she gets when she gets up every morning to go to 6 

Excellence Girls.  They have instilled some real 7 

important creed values into her such as honesty, 8 

loyalty, sisterhood and respect.  These creed 9 

values extend from the classroom to our home 10 

with her siblings.  She teaches her younger 11 

brother sight words and reading concepts that 12 

she, herself, has learned in class.  When she 13 

started Excellence Girls her career choice was 14 

to be a doctor.  Since being at Excellence Girls 15 

she has decided she wants to be a teacher.  She 16 

repeatedly tells me that she's going to college 17 

to learn to teach other scholars like her so 18 

that they can also be successful.  Excellence 19 

has given her the confidence and the skills that 20 

she will need to succeed.  I, as a parent, a 21 

caring parent and a person who knows the 22 

importance of education, I want to thank you for 23 

the opportunity to allow Excellence to another 24 

great school in the K191 building.  Thank you 25 
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and have a good evening.   1 

MS. PRICE:  Pam Brewster, thank you.   2 

MS. PAULETTE JOHNSON:  Good evening.  My 3 

name is Paulette Johnson and I am a parent of 4 

Jordan Johnson who attends Excellence Girls 5 

Charter as well Janelle Johnson.  I support the 6 

co-location of Excellence Girls Charter School 7 

with PS 191.  I am appalled at adults who say 8 

that they don't want to share and that there's 9 

not enough space or what about us.  We need to 10 

set aside our own personal feelings and as 11 

educators think about the children.  Because as 12 

educators we should be here for our children.  13 

Our children are of this community.  You have a 14 

beautiful school.  Each educator is doing, I 15 

know, top performance.  I am a nurse at 16 

Excellence Girls as well as PS309.  I see the 17 

advantage of two schools co-locating.  I see how 18 

PS309 has actually adapted to some of the ways, 19 

the standards that Excellence Girls Charter 20 

School has raised.  We are not here to take 21 

over.  We are here to help expand what the 22 

foundation that we've already started with our 23 

children.  Your children and our children, they 24 

all belong to us.  Let's work together as a 25 
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family and support them.  Thank you.  1 

MS. PRICE:  Thank you.  Ms. Bishop.   2 

MS. RENISHA BISHOP:  Good evening.  I would 3 

like to say that I support co-location.  I am a 4 

parent of Uncommon School children and I know 5 

from experience of having a building co-located 6 

and having a building not co-located.  What we 7 

do is as parents and children, we go into a 8 

building to join together.  We are not here to 9 

take away from 191.  We're here to add.  We have 10 

children that are raised up with standards of 11 

respect.  When they come into this building they 12 

will respect it as their own.  They will look at 13 

you as adult that will have to also guide them.  14 

I ask you here today to unite together, not 15 

against each other.  We are raising up children 16 

that's in a community that has to live with 17 

changes.  And if we adapt to a change easily the 18 

children will also adapt.  I ask you here today 19 

to let us not come into your building feeling 20 

like this is not where we belong, but as a sense 21 

of belonging.  We are not here to take anything 22 

away from this building.  And I am an old parent 23 

of 191.  And I'm here today to say when my child 24 

was in this building there was things I was 25 
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displeased about and there was things I was 1 

pleased about.  But what I say here today let's 2 

work together, not against each other.  Thank 3 

you.  4 

MS. PRICE:  Thank you.  Ms. Crew.  5 

MS. CRYSTAL EDWARDS:  Good evening and hello 6 

everyone.  My name is Crystal Edwards and I am a 7 

grandmother of Avania Maddox who's a student at 8 

All Girls Excellence and has been from the 1 st  9 

grade to the 4 th  grade.  I'm here tonight to 10 

support Excellence Girls elementary school and 11 

to speak on why it's important to co-locate and 12 

exist in PS191 as a middle school.  I felt that 13 

Uncommon Schools serve every student with a 14 

better education.  Every student is given a 15 

total education experience that is outstanding 16 

to the learning and structure in life as a 17 

whole.  Their teachers help the students with 18 

special needs, language comprehension, math, 19 

social studies and go to college and 20 

independence and professionalism in every day 21 

life.  My granddaughter, Aviana, has grown and 22 

blossomed like a flower.  Her outlook on life 23 

and expectations for herself is outstanding.  24 

She was picked through a random lottery which 25 
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serves as a fair process giving a girl a 1 

chance at an equal opportunity.  The teachers 2 

work with you to make sure all the educational 3 

needs are met and what you feel that you can 4 

bring to the table for your child.  They are 5 

taught sisterhood and how to work together.  6 

They have no incidents in their schools.  They 7 

don't do bullying, they work with each other and 8 

they respect each other.  They are taught 9 

respect for one another.  They bring their table 10 

and they problems to a table and they work, 11 

learn how to discuss it.  They work hard and 12 

they taught with dedication and hard work they 13 

can achieve anything.  My granddaughter looks 14 

forward to school and learning every day.  The 15 

teachers keep the communication between them and 16 

the parents very open to discuss educational 17 

needs.  It would be hard for my grandchild to 18 

have to go somewhere else for middle school.  19 

She has excelled in her learning and I would 20 

like to her to be able to stay on the road and 21 

the path to college.  She wants to attend Yale 22 

and Princeton.  Not many of our girls nowadays 23 

wants to do that.  I think she needs to continue 24 

on this road and I feel that it would be a plus 25 
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for that school, for all girls' school to come 1 

into this district.  Parents deserve a great 2 

opportunity and options in every neighborhood 3 

where their children are grown and have a chance 4 

at a greater life through a greater education.  5 

Why - - district 17 with teachers who are 6 

dedicated to education for our kids.   7 

MS. PRICE:  Thank you.  I'm going to call 8 

the next five speakers.  Mr. Wheeler, number 9 

six, number seven, Tamara Jones, number eight, 10 

Amanda Semel, number nine, Jennifer Hart, number 11 

10, Michael Leak if you can join us here in the 12 

front, please.  13 

MR. WHEELER:  Good evening again.  Like I 14 

said, the reason why I'm speaking a second time 15 

is because, like I said, my child goes to this 16 

school. I sit on the CEC board, but my child 17 

goes to this school.  I had the opportunity to 18 

put my child in any school in the city of New 19 

York.  I chose this one.  This one I chose.  And 20 

what I'm saying to you is that when you look at 21 

the numbers because let's look at the numbers.  22 

Let's look at the projections.  When you look at 23 

the projections they're talking about 2016, 2017 24 

where everything will automatically come 25 
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together.  In 2017 we be voting for a new 1 

president.  We be voting for a new mayor.  Okay, 2 

so you can't look at the numbers and think 3 

everything's going to stay the same.  New 4 

leadership is coming for the city of New York.  5 

So, you can't say we going to go by the same 6 

guidelines that we are already at.  Right now, 7 

the city is run by the mayor.  The school system 8 

is run by the mayor, but that will be no longer 9 

when he is out of office.  So, his proposal to 10 

have set a charter school will be in the clear 11 

past because the new leadership that will be the 12 

mayor will not adjust to that.  So, stop looking 13 

at the numbers and start looking at the 14 

leadership and where they're going to come and 15 

the way they're going to go.  Okay.  We have to 16 

accept certain principals because of the fact 17 

that we do have a mayor that's also running the 18 

Board of Education.  And that's a big thing.  19 

You think it's not a big thing but it's a big 20 

thing when the president of the Board of 21 

Education can't make a decision without calling 22 

the mayor.  You think that's not a problem?  23 

That is a problem.  Because he has said a whole 24 

lot of things if he was allowed to be 25 
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independent.  So, we know when the new mayor 1 

comes, the new chancellor will be more 2 

independent and will make certain statements and 3 

certain things that's happened in the city of 4 

New York.  And like I say, you have not 5 

addressed the fact that when you're talking 6 

about 5 th  grade and most of the schools go to K 7 

to 5 and K to 8, you not have addressed the fact 8 

that you'll be chopping off the heads of all of 9 

the surrounding schools.  Not just this school, 10 

so what fairness is that?  Education I accept 11 

that.  But understand what the district is made 12 

of before you want to come put your position 13 

here and then act like nobody don't care why 14 

that you're here and we are taking over.  It 15 

will be taken over because everything has to be 16 

shared.  Everything has to be shared.  Okay.  17 

You're not coming in with a new school.  You're 18 

coming in with students.  So, please I'm asking 19 

you to go back to the other districts who have 20 

already accepted the boundaries on which you 21 

already stand on.  That's all I'm asking.  And 22 

the question is why you can't get accepted again 23 

in those same districts.  Thank you very much.   24 

MS. PRICE:  Thank you.  Ms. Jones. 25 
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MS. TAMARA JONES:  Good evening, I'm a 1 

teacher at PS191.  The Paul Robeson school on 2 

Park Place has been an educational home for many 3 

children in this community for a very long time.  4 

For 15 years I have watched the culture of this 5 

school flourish with love and support for our 6 

students and their parents.  PS191 is not just a 7 

place for learning.  It is an educational 8 

facility that provides support throughout the 9 

entire building for all of our students by every 10 

adult that works in this building.  The 11 

principal and assistant principal in this school 12 

created this supportive environment.  They 13 

provided the necessary resources needed in 14 

helping students reach their optimum growth.  15 

For example, a grant was written to build a 16 

dance studio and to implement dance instruction.  17 

In addition, this auditorium was reconstructed 18 

to give students the opportunity to display 19 

their creativity through dance and to have our 20 

annual graduation ceremony.  Now, the question 21 

we all have: how will the Excellence Girls 22 

Charter School affect our school community 23 

culture?  We can't let this happen.  Thank you.  24 

MS. PRICE:  Thank you, Ms. Semel.  25 
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MS. AMANDA SEMEL:  Good evening, I am the 1 

speech language pathologist at PS191.  I'm going 2 

to begin by sharing a few statistics with you.  3 

In the 2010 to 2011 year PS191 was put on the 4 

school in need of improvement list for the 5 

particular subgroup of special education 6 

students in the area of English language arts.  7 

In 2011 to 2012 school year we were proud to 8 

announce that this particular subgroup succeeded 9 

in improving their performances so that our 10 

school was no longer a school in need of 11 

improvement.  In addition, in 2011-2012 we were 12 

proud to be number 1 in district 17 for moving 13 

our students to a least restrictive environment 14 

adding approximately 5.1% for added credit for 15 

least restrictive environment.  So, how are we 16 

able to accomplish such feats?  Some of the 17 

reasons that we were able to do that is because 18 

PS191 had the opportunity to provide our 19 

students with the necessities that they need not 20 

only to learn, but to learn to their optimal 21 

ability.  Aside from our amazing general and 22 

special education teachers who provide the 23 

special education in the classroom, we also have 24 

a number of professionals who provide services 25 
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outside the classroom as well.  Such 1 

professionals such as myself, the SETS teacher, 2 

the SL teacher, guidance counselor, social 3 

worker and psychologist.  These group of 4 

professionals provide our students with the 5 

necessary supports that they need to access and 6 

maximize the curriculum being taught in the 7 

classroom.  We are able to do that because we 8 

provide them with multimodality learning in our 9 

own classrooms via use of a technology lab and 10 

the multisensory movement room and by 11 

collaborating our lessons with physical 12 

education.  What would happen if PS191 were to 13 

co-exist with the charter school?  The 14 

professionals such as myself and the other 15 

professionals I named would no longer have their 16 

own classrooms or might not even have a 17 

classroom at all.  We would have to be providing 18 

services in the regular classroom which is the 19 

push in model which we do and it works.  But 20 

then we wouldn't be able to give the services 21 

that we give them outside of the classroom.  The 22 

bottom line is is that although the charter 23 

school is wonderful, I don't believe it's a good 24 

fit for our students especially our special 25 
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education students.  Children who are homeless 1 

and the children who have domestic violence 2 

issues.  In fact, I believe it could be 3 

detrimental to their learning and progress.  4 

MS. PRICE:  Thank you.  Ms. Hart. 5 

MS. JENNIFER HART:  Good evening, good 6 

evening board members.  My name is Jennifer 7 

Hart.  I'm the kindergarten special ed teacher 8 

in the ICT kindergarten 1 st  grade.  And I stand 9 

before you this evening not to speak against 10 

charter schools, but to speak on how a charter 11 

school being placed in this building is just not 12 

the right fit.  I have read the mission 13 

statements of the Excellence Girls Charter 14 

School.  You want to prepare your students, your 15 

girls, to excel to be college ready and prepare 16 

to become leaders.  We want the same at 191.  We 17 

have the same expectations of all of our 18 

students both the boys and the girls of our 19 

entire student body.  We, and I don't know if 20 

you know this, we have the future president of 21 

the United States in our building.  They could 22 

very well be in my classroom.  This is true due 23 

of our administration.  And they have worked to 24 

ensure that our students are given the best 25 



 35

possible resources not only in a dedicated 1 

staff, but the tools to utilize in order to 2 

achieve.  And no, these are not extras.  They 3 

are necessities.  We believe in a multimodality 4 

approach to teaching.  We know that children are 5 

not just one type of learner.  They learn in a 6 

variety of ways.  This is why we have a computer 7 

lab, this is why we have a dance studio, this is 8 

why we have a multisensory room.  This beautiful 9 

auditorium that everyone has the pleasure to sit 10 

in this evening and this is why we have a full 11 

fledged playground outside.  I understand why 12 

you want to walk into this building.  I 13 

understand why you would want to co-locate here 14 

because when you walk in you don't feel like 15 

you're just in any building.  You're in a school 16 

where you feel warmth.  And that goes again from 17 

the administration and right through into our 18 

children.  I'm running out of time.  So, I just 19 

want to say this: we believe in our children.  20 

We believe in their education and we believe 21 

that bringing this school into our building will 22 

encroach upon their learning and it should not 23 

be taken away.   24 

MS. PRICE:  Thank you.  Mr. Leak? 25 
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MR. MICHAEL LEAK:  Michael Leak? 1 

MS. PRICE:  Michael Leak, yes. 2 

MR. LEAK:  My name is Michael Leak.  I'm the 3 

guidance counselor at PS191.  I've been the 4 

guidance counselor here for 17 years.  First of 5 

all, I would like to state the reality of the 6 

matter is that I do not believe our building can 7 

be partitioned off.  Partitioned in the sense 8 

first we have an excellent leadership already.  9 

We have an ingenious principal who has 10 

instituted many, many policies and procedures 11 

that have allowed our school to be as successful 12 

as it is.  Also we have Ms. Ghafi who always is 13 

a wonderful, knowledgeable, experienced leader.  14 

And they've been doing this for a while.  I do 15 

not believe our leadership should be compromised 16 

for an outside group.  And it's very difficult 17 

for me to come to a conclusion like that because 18 

I know we're dealing with children.  However, I 19 

know already what exists here is a cultural 20 

environment.  A rich cultural environment.  One 21 

that is of which you may consider a little Ivy 22 

League.  We have instituted programs, violin, 23 

ballet, our students have come to know Mozart 24 

and Aristotle.  They have been able to socially 25 
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come together during our picnics as a family 1 

in the yard which is one of our principle 2 

celebration.  If you can imagine a richness of 3 

culture as exists here you would not deny or 4 

compromise it at all.  I believe my time is up.  5 

I hope I represented the sentiments of everyone.  6 

MS. PRICE:  Thank you.  I'm going to call 7 

the next five speakers if you can please join me 8 

in the front.  Number 11, Elishera Konston, 9 

number 12, Sonia Witter, number 13, Esther 10 

Davis, number 14, Jeznel Butler, and number 15, 11 

Matt Nathanson.  Number 11. 12 

DR. ELISHERA KONSTON:  Hi, everyone.  I'm 13 

Dr. Elishera Konston, I'm the psychologist here 14 

at PS191.  Oh, sorry.  So, I'm Dr. Elishera 15 

Konston, I'm the psychologist here at PS191, 16 

Paul Robeson.  Since my joining the team here at 17 

PS191 I noticed a remarkable phenomenon that's 18 

unique to this school.  This phenomenon is the 19 

way in which PS191 creates a safe haven, a place 20 

in which children are protected and welcomed.  21 

The small size of our school allows each team 22 

member, be it the school psychologist, the 23 

guidance counselor, the speech and language 24 

therapist to take an active and involved role in 25 
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each and every one of our students.  Children 1 

walking down the hall are able to greet each 2 

other, they know every single staff by name.  3 

This is an atmosphere of welcoming and emotional 4 

security. PS191 succeeds in creating an 5 

environment which puts children at ease.  I fear 6 

that the presence of a charter school co-located 7 

with PS191 would seriously jeopardize that 8 

atmosphere.  In particular, the significant 9 

increase in the age range housed in this 10 

building would negatively influence the feelings 11 

of safety and security that PS191 has worked 12 

hard to build.  The mere presence of students so 13 

much older and larger than themselves breeds a 14 

level of fear and insecurity in small children.  15 

Additionally, I am concerned regarding the issue 16 

of space.  Currently, each member of the team 17 

has their own office.  This allows us to 18 

maximize our impact on students.  The presence 19 

of a charter school will only serve to limit the 20 

mobility of the staff in attending to the 21 

student's needs such as responding to - - and 22 

maximizing each child's learning.  I hope that 23 

the board will consider the special environment 24 

PS191 has worked so hard to foster and look at 25 
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the impact that the charter school will have 1 

on the sense of family and closeness in PS191.  2 

Thank you.  3 

MS. PRICE:  Thank you.  Sonia Witter, 4 

please.  5 

MS. SONIA WITTER:  Good evening everyone and 6 

welcome you all to our school, to our school.  7 

My name is Sonia Witter and I am the supervisor 8 

school aide here.  I'm also a member of the 9 

school leadership team here and I have kids, 10 

grandkids that went through this school.  Some 11 

of them are still here, some of them is out.  I 12 

would like to let everyone know that my whole 13 

concept about the whole thing is that I don't 14 

think that a charter school in our school is a 15 

match, is not a match, it's not a fit, it will 16 

not work.  191 is not the place for a charter 17 

school for girls.  There's kids that have left 18 

our school in the past and gone to charter 19 

schools and a lot of them have returned to our 20 

school.  That's from what the charter is saying 21 

to these parents out there and half of it 22 

doesn’t go the way it's supposed to.  And I'm 23 

speaking as a parent because I've been 24 

approached 1,000 time in this school.  I've got 25 
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letters home from my kids and so forth.  Under 1 

the leadership here of Mrs. Capolongo and Mrs. 2 

Ghafi on the head on the district 17, Ms. 3 

Buffie, have done excellent job.  We're still 4 

trying to keep our school where it is, a B 5 

school and we intend to keep it there.  I've 6 

heard someone say before and I want to piggyback 7 

on that about the charter school is not taking 8 

away from 191.  It is because we have been told 9 

before, the administration, I sat in on the 10 

meeting that our physical education in the gym 11 

would be cut.  Our kids have no where to go, 12 

they went to the park, their bikes are being 13 

taken away, so we give them extra gym inside 191 14 

because in this neighborhood they are not very 15 

safe going to the park.  So, I'm just want to 16 

let everyone know it's not a fit, it’s not a 17 

match, it cannot happen and I will fight to the 18 

very end to keep it out of here.   19 

MS. PRICE:  Thank you.  Esther Davis, number 20 

13. 21 

MS. ESTHER DAVIS:  Thank you.  Good evening 22 

everyone.   23 

MALE VOICE 1:  Good evening. 24 

MS. DAVIS:  Both sides are very passionate 25 
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and that's quite evident tonight.  But I come 1 

to you tonight and today to voice my concerns 2 

regarding the proposed and I use that word very 3 

loosely, proposed co-location of PS191, the Paul 4 

Robeson elementary school, and Excellence Girls 5 

Charter School.  The Paul Robeson elementary 6 

school although small in number is a powerhouse 7 

among other schools.  We are trailblazers and 8 

have set practices and trends that many schools 9 

which you admire have adopted from us.  Our 10 

administration, Mrs. Capolongo, Mrs. Ghafi, have 11 

worked tirelessly to make sure that our 12 

students, our children have the necessary tools 13 

and supplements needed to ensure success.  We, 14 

the PS191 family, and yes I say that, the PS191 15 

family, have a wealth to offer.  What does 16 

Excellence Girls Charter School bring to the 17 

table?  With this proposed co-location of PS191 18 

we will be forced to make many concessions.  19 

You've heard it over and over tonight.  The use 20 

of the gymnasium and so forth.  There's nothing 21 

wrong with sharing.  Absolutely not.  But as you 22 

are passionate about excellence being the right 23 

fit for PS191, I am passionate that it is not.  24 

Let me just say that as a girl growing up I was 25 
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always taught to believe that if you come to 1 

somebody's home and you stay for a long period 2 

of time you offer an appreciation.  Again, what 3 

does Excellence Girls Charter School have to 4 

offer PS191?   5 

MS. PRICE:  Mr. Butler. 6 

MR. BUTLER:  Good evening everyone.  I chose 7 

to speak again to say if I offended anybody by 8 

what I said earlier it's just a feeling, you'll 9 

get over it.  But what I'm saying is this 10 

school, this all girl charter school, is not 11 

going to accommodate our children because I have 12 

two boys.  They can't go to ya'lls schools, so 13 

it's not accommodating me.  It's a lot of boys 14 

in this school.  You're not accommodating all 15 

the boys in this school.  You have to share 16 

bathrooms, little thing like bathrooms.  You're 17 

going to have to close down a bunch of bathrooms 18 

for all girls.  The boys are not going to be 19 

able to go there.  It's a lot of things that go 20 

on.  My kids are part of this school.  It's a 21 

whole bunch of boys that's a part of this 22 

school.  Ya'll only accommodate females.  An all 23 

girl's school ya'll just trying, what's going to 24 

go on?  Ya'll going to accommodate the ladies, 25 
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you're not going to accommodate the boys and 1 

it's going to collide because the girls that's 2 

already here are going to be offended by the new 3 

girls that's there.  You know how girls are.  4 

Girls have attitudes, girls have emotions, they 5 

deal with all that.  Even though they kids 6 

they're going to deal with that.  Every kid is 7 

brought up with respect, a lot of kids in this 8 

school have respect.  A lot of the parents are 9 

concerned.  But I have two boys, my kids can't 10 

come to this school.  And 191 reached the goals 11 

they reached to by being small.  That gives you 12 

more time to focus on these kids.  More kids is 13 

going to take away from our kids.  Ya'll 14 

learning is not affecting what's going on.  15 

Ya'll already doing what ya'll doing, they 16 

already got their little program going on.  It's 17 

a bunch of other schools to find a spot in.  18 

Thank you.  19 

MS. PRICE:  Thank you.  Matt Nathanson. 20 

MR. MATT NATHANSON:  Hi, name is Matt 21 

Nathanson, I'm a school social worker here at 22 

PS191.  Hi, name is Matt Nathanson, school 23 

social worker here at PS191.  I just want to 24 

talk from my heart because I've been in this 25 
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profession since '91 when I started at 1 

Covenant House and I'm used to working with very 2 

hard to reach children.  Mr. Leak and I and the 3 

rest of the staff many times we have to do home 4 

visits where we go into the house and we have to 5 

intervene and it to really reach out and service 6 

this neighborhood we really need the entire 7 

building and that's really strongly how I feel 8 

from my heart.  It crushes my heart that this 9 

fabulous building unit.  It has to be shared 10 

with an all girl's school which a lot of the 11 

community do.  They're a lot of boys at this 12 

school as you can see by statistics.  So, a lot 13 

of the work that is done at this school is 14 

servicing very special needs children.  And as a 15 

former psychiatric social worker at Brookdale 16 

Medical Center which is right down the road on 17 

Lyndon, I worked there for four and a half 18 

years, with the Department of Education almost 19 

15 years.  I've seen different schools and I've 20 

seen charter schools that come into the new 21 

settings and I've never seen a glorious fit.  22 

So, I really, honestly from my heart I say no, 23 

no, no, no, no.  Please, no.  Don't do it.  24 

Because I haven't seen anyone come up to me and 25 
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talk to me about the great things that what 1 

they're going to bring for us and the bottom 2 

line is we do work as a team and we're doing 3 

great work as a team and this is the best place 4 

I've ever worked in in my life.  I mean, you can 5 

ask my wife, she thinks I'm so happy, but 6 

because I come home happy.  So, don't, please, 7 

I'm just talking from my heart as a person.  I'm 8 

also a professional, but anyway my time is up, 9 

so I have to go.  So, thank you so much for 10 

listening.   11 

MS. PRICE:  Okay.  Thank you.  I'm going to 12 

call the next five people.  Number 16, Adela 13 

Lewis, number 18 Danielle Bookman, number 19, 14 

Yvette Southlands, number 20 Natalia Roach, 15 

number 21, Debbie Maiden.  If you all please 16 

line up in the front.   17 

MS. DIANE STEVENS:  Hi.  18 

MS. PRICE:  Hi.  Thank you.   19 

MS. STEVENS:  Make sure - - .  Good evening 20 

everybody.  My name is Diane Stevens, my 21 

daughter attends Excellence Girls Charter 22 

School.  I'm her mom, proud Brooklyn resident, 23 

proud native New Yorker, proud American.  And 24 

I'm starting like that because we are talking 25 
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about separation here and it shouldn’t be 1 

about that.  Every child in this nation should 2 

have a quality education and that is what Paul 3 

Robeson, you guys, have talked about it all 4 

night and I believe you.  And Excellence Girls 5 

Charter School provide to the children of 6 

Brooklyn.  Your kids happen to go to Paul 7 

Robeson, our kids happen to go to Excellence 8 

Girls Charter School.  They need space for their 9 

5 through 8 and they'd like for it to be here.  10 

They currently co-locate, like they said, on 794 11 

Monroe.  It's a great experience.  I've spoken 12 

to parents at 309.  They don't have a problem, 13 

they don't really intermingle because of the way 14 

it's co-located in the building.  I'm not 15 

exactly sure if you guys have ever been in a co-16 

located building.  But it is not a whole bunch 17 

of intermingling going on.  We are able to 18 

figure out ways to share the space, share 19 

everything including interactions with other 20 

parents who care about their kid's education.  21 

So, I'm not exactly sure why people are so 22 

passionate about us not being here.  It's not 23 

about us, I'm not sure what we're supposed to 24 

give other than great respect, great students 25 
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and us building a great community and a great 1 

country together by educating our children and 2 

giving them the best possible education that is 3 

available to them.  So, I really hope that you 4 

guys and we all just figure out a way to work 5 

together and be great neighbors.  Thank you.  6 

MS. PRICE:  Thank you.  18, Danielle 7 

Bookman. 8 

MS. DANIELLE BOOKMAN:  I don't need it.  9 

Good evening everyone.  My name is Danielle 10 

Bookman.  I am a second grade ICT teacher, I am 11 

the gen ed teacher in the classroom and I want 12 

to say that as many of my colleagues have spoken 13 

about tonight PS 191 is a well developed school.  14 

Will we make it work with you in the building?  15 

Of course we will.  We're all adults, we're all 16 

professionals whether it's in education or 17 

something else.  We will make it work.  However, 18 

our basis is that there's no such thing in our 19 

school if a child is the right fit for our 20 

school.  We, in this school have and we will 21 

always take on the philosophy how can our school 22 

fit the child?  We don't turn children away, we 23 

don't say no, I don't care if it's based on 24 

their sex, their special needs, whatever the 25 
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case may be.  I also wanted to talk a little 1 

bit more about the phys ed program.  In our 2 

school we service children, we have the 3 

privilege of contributing to their success.  We 4 

have many at risk students and they don't have 5 

the opportunity to participate outside in 6 

organized sports.  Mom can't drive them to 7 

soccer, they're not learning about team work.  8 

They get that physical education and that's 9 

where they learn those life skills.  That's how 10 

they learn to be a good citizen.  To cooperate 11 

with others, to play with others, they need that 12 

time in the gym.  Somebody, a few people have 13 

mentioned unused space.  There's no unused space 14 

in this school.  I have a child in my class who, 15 

under the special ed reform, he has a 12 to 1 to 16 

1 on his IEP and he's in an ICT class.  He has 17 

push in, but he also needs to be taken out of 18 

the room.  Another school comes in and uses that 19 

room little Johnny loses that service.  A child 20 

is losing out because of this.  I appreciate 21 

what you stand for, but unfortunately I just 22 

don’t think that there's room in this building 23 

for it.  Thank you.  24 

MS. YVETTE SOUTHLAND:  Good evening 25 
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everyone.  I have prepared some notes, but I'm 1 

going to speak extemporaneously.  PS191 is a 2 

school that service every child that enters its 3 

building.  We do not at any time say we will not 4 

service this child because we know he has 5 

behavioral problems or because he's a special 6 

education child.  We do not go through the 7 

records to see whether this child has the 8 

potential to be a level three or four before we 9 

admit them to our school.  We service every 10 

child that lives in the neighborhood.  And so, 11 

like that, if we should accept another school in 12 

the building we would not have room to service 13 

the students the way we want to serve them.  14 

Also, we are forgetting the problem why the 15 

students from grades 6 through 8 were separated 16 

from students K through 5.  We are going to now 17 

encourage and encounter the problems for which 18 

they separated them.  The children in the lower 19 

grades are going to emulate the behaviors of the 20 

older students and we know that they are not 21 

perfect students.  So, we are going to be 22 

encountering lots of problems.  Right now, I 23 

don't think that grades 6 through 8 is a perfect 24 

fit for our school.  Thank you.   25 
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MS. PRICE:  Okay.  If you are leaving for 1 

the evening, please go ahead or if you are 2 

having conversations you may please take them 3 

outside and so that no speakers feel any kind of 4 

disrespect, thank you.  Ms. Roach?  5 

MS. NATALIE ROACH:  Yes.  Lucky 20.  Good 6 

evening everyone.  I'm Ms. Roach, the parent 7 

coordinator at PS191.  Hi - - .  And I would 8 

just like to say that I love the idea of an all 9 

girl's school, Excellence Charter School for 10 

Girls.  I don't like the idea of it co-located 11 

in PS191.  As several of my colleagues have 12 

already stated and what you don't know about 13 

PS191 and district 17 is that our students don't 14 

have a park that they can go play in.  We have a 15 

high population of students who are housed 16 

within the shelter.  So, we have to provide our 17 

students with extra services that they do not 18 

get in the community or at home.  And our 19 

parents greatly appreciate these services and 20 

these services include: a dance studio that we 21 

wrote a grant for and received, they include the 22 

playground and it took the principal and 23 

administration and many staff members about 10 24 

years to receive.  So, this school has worked 25 
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hard to receive the services and facilities 1 

that you see in the building and our students 2 

need extra gym time.  They need the multisensory 3 

room and they need to dance.  And I have a 4 

problem with another school that wants to come 5 

and take away that time.  And you say you're not 6 

but you are because these are shared spaces and 7 

the student's gym time is now cut down in half.  8 

Even their time in the auditorium is going to be 9 

cut down because we have to be sharing spaces.  10 

And I don't know what's on the agenda, but I 11 

know I sat in a meeting about a month ago 12 

regarding co-location and I heard as they were 13 

walking out "Oh, is that dance studio a shared 14 

space?"  So, we're already thinking about taking 15 

away time, more time from our students and space 16 

that they need.  They direly need.  This 17 

neighborhood, our children need extra time 18 

during physical activities and we provide that.  19 

You want to come and locate and take these 20 

services away from our students and it's not 21 

fair.  Thank you. 22 

MS. PRICE:  Thank you.  21.  Ms. Debra 23 

Maiden.  24 

MS. DEBRA MAIDEN:  Thank you.  Good evening 25 
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everyone.  My name is Debra Maiden.  I'm an 1 

education assistant at PS191.  Ya'll can hear 2 

me?  No?  At PS191.  All night we heard about 3 

the charter school is a good fit.  We also have 4 

a good fit already in our school.  We don’t need 5 

another good fit.  Our fit is perfect already.  6 

You also said, we talked about excellence, I'm a 7 

pre-K paraprofessional.  And the kids that we 8 

have in our pre-K class, they excel.  So, they 9 

are doing great.  They were reading and writing 10 

and doing everything that ya'll offered already.  11 

So, we really don’t need it.  PS191 consider 12 

ourselves a family.  We see the good times and 13 

the bad times.  We strive for excellence.  14 

That's how we became a B school.  We didn't 15 

become a B school by sitting down with our legs 16 

crossed waiting for something else to happen.  17 

We earned that right to become a B school.  Our 18 

motto is children first.  The staff at PS191 19 

under Ms. Capolongo and Ms. Ghafi work really 20 

hard getting the playground which you heard.  21 

The computer room, the dance class and we really 22 

believe that the charter school is not a good 23 

fit at the time.  When we get the charter school 24 

in here our space is limited.  We have a whole 25 
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lot of things going on.  Whole lot of things 1 

going on.  But just to say that we appreciate 2 

the thought that ya'll gave us and how you 3 

considered us, but right now it's not a good 4 

fit.  And we have to realize that safety comes 5 

first in this building.  Safety is the first and 6 

most important thing we think about.  What about 7 

the snow days?  What about the days that it 8 

rained?  Where's everybody going to be at?  What 9 

about the little kids that get dismissed the 10 

same time that ya'll get dismissed?  We're 11 

concerned with the kids and the safety of the 12 

school and the safety of the kids first.  Thank 13 

you.  14 

MS. PRICE:  Thank you.  I'm going to call 15 

the next five speakers.  22, Jeanette Martin, 23 16 

Shelly Cazeku, 24, Chanelle Poole, 24 Mary 17 

Gibbs, 26, Ernest Poole.  Ms. Martin, 22. 18 

MS. JEANETTE MARTIN:  Thank you.  Hi, excuse 19 

me, hi, my name is Jeanette Martin.  I'm the 20 

family worker here at PS191 and I'm also a 21 

parent first.  I've been a parent at PS191 for 22 

23 years.  And me, I don't like to be served raw 23 

food.  That's how it was brought to me.  Put it 24 

on the platter and we supposed to accept it.  25 
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We're not going to accept it.  They just came 1 

and told us we have to take it.  We don't have 2 

to take it.  Our school is a B school.  We going 3 

to be an A school before the year's over.  4 

That's it and that's all.   5 

MS. PRICE:  Thank you.  23. 6 

MS. SHELLY CAZEKU:  Thank you.  Hello, good 7 

evening everyone.  I'm a parent of PS191.  My 8 

daughter's sitting right here.  Her name is 9 

Rhonda Cazeku.  I remember last year she came 10 

from Haiti, she didn't know any English at all.  11 

And when she came here I remember her teacher 12 

was Ms. Ramos.  No, at first she had another 13 

teacher and she didn't know anything.  And she 14 

started doing a lot of things and she was 15 

"Mommy, I love this school and I don't want to 16 

leave this school," because she has all the help 17 

and all the support from all the teachers and I 18 

don't think you guys could fit here because I 19 

already have everything here for my daughter and 20 

I have so much to say, but I don't think I have 21 

enough time to tell you.  And I don't think you 22 

guys should come here.  And you don't fit here 23 

and my daughter and other child that comes to 24 

this school have enough space and enough help 25 
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and I don’t need you guys here.  Thank you. 1 

MS. PRICE:  Thank you.  24, Chanelle Poole.  2 

MS. CHANELLE POOLE:  Good evening everyone.  3 

I am Chanelle Poole and I'm 4 th  grade teacher 4 

here.  I've been at this school for 12 years.  5 

Now, parents from the Excellence Charter School, 6 

you come up and talk about your high hopes and 7 

your aspirations for your children and I am a 8 

bit offended by it because we have similar 9 

aspirations for our children.  Your hopes and 10 

your dreams are not unique to you.  You have the 11 

same for our children.  As I come here I'm 12 

thinking about what is it that you will offer 13 

us?  What will you bring to our building that we 14 

don't already have?  And I can't find anything.  15 

But I can tell you what it is we will lose if 16 

you come here.  Now, we are going to lose the 17 

things that make us uniquely 191.  As you 18 

already know, our school is well developed and 19 

those unique items are what make our school well 20 

developed.  Our playground outside offers our 21 

children an opportunity to play safely every 22 

day.  We worked hard to get that grant.  There's 23 

only one playground, only one playground in this 24 

neighborhood where children can play and it's 25 
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not safe.  So, we need our playground.  We 1 

need it for social reasons.  Perhaps one of the 2 

biggest reasons that our school was chosen was 3 

because of the space.  You say that we have a 4 

lot of space.  Yes, to you it looks like a lot 5 

of extra space that's not being used.  But we 6 

use our specialized classrooms for our children 7 

who have difficulty working productively in our 8 

traditional classroom.  I'll give you one 9 

example aside from what everyone else spoke 10 

about.  There's a PS191 urban garden.  Our 11 

science teacher noticed that our children could 12 

not relate to plant life cycles and anything 13 

dealing with agriculture.  What did he do?  He 14 

went out, he spent his own money, he spoke to 15 

other teachers who donated plants and other 16 

materials that is being used in our urban 17 

garden.  And that's to help our children.  If 18 

you come that's something else that we lose.  19 

One of my concerns is the safety during arrival 20 

and dismissal times.  As you see outside we 21 

don't have a speed bump on the block.  There are 22 

no signs saying that a school is nearby.  Just 23 

think about the additional children coming into 24 

our building with our children.  Think about the 25 
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busses, think about the parents who will be in 1 

cars bringing in all our children here.  That 2 

won't be a safe environment for our children.  3 

Again, co-locating is not a good fit for our 4 

school.  It's not a good idea.  There are 5 

various age ranges.  We have pre-kindergarten 6 

children as young as 4 years old and you plan to 7 

bring in children as old as 13.  Think about 8 

what will happen if a pre-K, I won’t say a pre-K 9 

because they're well guarded in our building.  10 

FEMALE VOICE 1:  Please wrap up. 11 

MS. POOLE:  Okay.  I have to wrap up, but 12 

just think about the safety of our children if 13 

this happens.  You want what's best for your 14 

children.  We also want what's best for our 15 

children.  And co-locating with the excellence 16 

school at 191 is not in the best interests of 17 

the children of PS191.  Thank you.  18 

MS. PRICE:  Thank you.  Number 25, Ms. 19 

Gibbs. 20 

MS. MARY GIBBS:  Good night everyone.  I am 21 

so glad I have the opportunity to speak after 22 

waiting so patiently since there are some people 23 

who went twice.  However, I'm here tonight in 24 

support of Excellence Girls.  I have three young 25 
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men, three young scholars attending Uncommon 1 

Schools.  One is in Northside Charter High 2 

School, one is in - - , the other son is in 3 

Collegiate Heights Middle School and one is 4 

Excellence Boys Charter School.  I am resident 5 

of this neighborhood.  I live right around the 6 

corner.  I had the opportunity to choose any 7 

school that I wanted to send my children to.  I 8 

chose to send my sons to Uncommon charter 9 

schools.  Our schools are co-located.  My oldest 10 

son is in special education.  He's getting all 11 

the educational support that he needs and more 12 

and he will be graduating in 2014.  But for - - 13 

and Collegiate is co-located also with two other 14 

schools.  I know each principal of each school 15 

and we all work together to build a playground 16 

for all our children.  Where I come from we 17 

don’t go to school together.  The girls go to 18 

school separately and the boys go to school 19 

separately until you go to high school.  So, I 20 

know that Excellence Girls will be a good fit 21 

because we all, not me, not you, not you, but we 22 

all want an excellent education for all our 23 

children.  Because why?  This is our community 24 

and we want our children to excel.  Thank you.  25 
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MS. PRICE:  Thank you.  Mr. Poole, number 1 

26.  2 

MR. ERNEST POOLE:  Good evening everyone, 3 

both PS191 and Uncommon Schools.  I've had the 4 

pleasure of working at PS191 my entire 5 

professional career.  I've only have two staff 6 

members who've been here with longer tenure than 7 

me.  That's the principal and the guidance 8 

counselor.  I can understand why you as a 9 

community would want to come to this building.  10 

Actually I don't even take umbrage with that.  11 

We have created an environment here that is 12 

welcoming.  We don’t turn anybody away.  We want 13 

this atmosphere to be as it is.  So, for that I 14 

understand that.  What I take umbrage with is 15 

the notion that this school is under utilized.  16 

We are about as under utilized a building as 17 

your hand is under utilizing its pinky.  In 18 

general, if you're an entity and I'm a science 19 

teacher, I'm the science teacher that was 20 

mentioned earlier.  If something's under 21 

utilized you get rid of it.  But they haven't 22 

gotten rid of us because we're here to do our 23 

jobs and we do it well.  It's kind of a slap in 24 

the face to say under utilized.  When I put in 25 
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my hard earned time and I miss time with my 1 

daughter to come here and do things for an under 2 

utilized space I'm a little bit hurt by that.  3 

Thank you.  Yeah, you see it's difficult for me 4 

to put into words, but if we were under utilized 5 

then they should have just closed the doors and 6 

locked it up for you to come in and at any point 7 

in time and take the entire building that you 8 

could have had for K to 8 at any time.  But 9 

we've done our part to make every single one of 10 

our children succeed.  I ran into one of our 11 

former students in the store.  He told me he was 12 

studying chemical and electrical engineering.  I 13 

almost passed out.  Not because I was surprised 14 

that he did it, because I was so proud.  Thank 15 

you.  16 

MS. PRICE:  Thank you.  I'm going to call 17 

the next five speakers.  These are the final 18 

five speakers of the evening.  27, Lila Dudan, 19 

29, Ryan Stevens, 30, Richard Quan, 31, Crystal 20 

Edwards, 32, Kenneth Edwards.  27?   21 

MS. TANESE RUTLEDGE:  Good evening everyone, 22 

to the panel, my name is Tanese Rutledge and my 23 

daughter attends Excellence Girls Charter 24 

School.  I am here tonight to first express my 25 
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love and gratitude to Excellence Girls Charter 1 

School for accepting my baby.  Second, to inform 2 

others of how important Excellence Girls is to 3 

our community and our neighborhood and the young 4 

ladies that they serve.  Excellence Girls has 5 

enabled my daughter and her peers to grow into 6 

loving, caring, responsible young ladies that I 7 

know are on their way to college.  Various 8 

creeds and values are instilled that ooze out 9 

into their neighborhoods and into our homes.  10 

Just to touch on a couple of points, Excellence 11 

Girls has been sharing space with 309 for 4 12 

years which leads us here.  We're moving on to 13 

the 5 th  grade and we would love your partnership 14 

and that to serve our daughters.  Our girls, if 15 

you will allow them to, will show love, respect 16 

and appreciation for sharing your space.  Let's 17 

think about the children.  We are part of the 18 

same neighborhood.  We live in some of the same 19 

buildings as you all.  Our children, my daughter 20 

as an example, took the gifted and talented 21 

test, but in other neighborhood my husband 22 

didn't I have an option of a school to send her 23 

to around the corner from us.  So, we came 24 

across Excellence Girls that would challenge our 25 
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daughter the way we wanted her to be 1 

challenged to learn the things that we needed 2 

her to learn to lead her to college.  So, I look 3 

forward to seeing you as my daughter leave the 4 

4 th  grade going to the 5 th  in her year coming 5 

here.  Thank you.   6 

MS. PRICE:  29, Diane Stevens, please.  Oh.  7 

29.  Okay.  Thank you.  We've heard many 8 

significant comments this evening.  We 9 

appreciate your feedback and contributions to 10 

the hearing.  This information will be shared 11 

with the panel on educational policy which will 12 

have it's hearing on December 20 th , 2012 at 6:00 13 

p.m. at the High School of Fashion Industries, 14 

located 225 West 24 th  Street in Manhattan to vote 15 

on this proposal.  Again, the email address and 16 

phone number where comments can be made are 17 

d17proposals@schools.nyc.gov , the phone number 18 

is (212) 374-0208.  Thank you all for coming.  19 

This joint public hearing is officially 20 

adjourned.  21 

FEMALE VOICE 1:  - - . 22 

MS. PRICE:  I'm sorry, say that again?   23 

FEMALE VOICE 1:  What's the date of the 24 

hearing? 25 
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MS. PRICE:  The date of the hearing of the 1 

panel on educational policy is going to have the 2 

hearing on December 20 th , 6:00 p.m. High School 3 

of Fashion Industries.  Okay.  Thank you all.   4 
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